
 
 

HOMES FOR GOOD BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS’ MEETING 
Wednesday, September 24th, 2025 

 
Table Of Contents 

(Click On Each Agenda Item to Navigate to That Section) 
 

AGENDA…………………………………………………………………………………………. Page 2 

  

ADMINISTRATION………………………………………………………………………….… 

❖ Executive Director Report 

Page 5 

  

CONSENT AGENDA…………………………………………………………………………… 

❖ Approval of 08/27/2025 Board Meeting Minutes  

Page 6   

  

ORDER 25-24-09-01H…..……………..……………………………………………………. Page 11  

In the Matter of Approving the Fiscal Year 2026 Budget  

  

ORDER 25-24-09-02H……………………………………………………………………….. 

In the Matter of Approving the Fiscal Year 2026 Public Housing Operating Budget 

Page 17 

  

  

EXECUTIVE SESSION.……………………………………………………………………….. 

The Homes for Good Board will hold an Executive Session pursuant to ORS 192.660(d), 

to conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to carry on 

labor negotiations.      

Page 22  

  

ORDER 25-24-09-03H……………………………………………………………………….. 

In the Matter of Approving the Collective Bargaining Agreement Ratification 

Page 22 

  

PRESENTATION……………………………………………………………………………….. 

Energy Services: Overview of Programs & Community Impact 

Page 76 

 



AGENDA 

Homes for Good Housing Agency 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Location of the meeting: 

Homes for Good Administrative Building 

100 W 13th Avenue 

Eugene, OR 97401 

 

Teams 

 

This meeting will be conducted in person with option to join via public video call and conference line (see 

details below). 
 

 

Wednesday, September 24th, 2025 at 1:30pm   

The September 24th, 2025, Homes for Good Board of Commissioners meeting will be held at the Homes 

for Good Administrative Building. It will also be available via a public video call with dial-in capacity. The 

public has the option to participate in person or by joining via video call or conference line.   

 

Teams Meeting: 

 

Join Meeting: Link  

Meeting ID: 285 327 391 659 

Passcode: a2UF27vQ 

_______________________________________ 

 

Dial-In: +1 689-206-0388,,817935186# 

Phone Conference ID: 817 935 186# 

 

 

Guide to Using Teams: Link 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ZmYxMGQzNDgtYzJkMi00NzkyLWFlMDEtNzQ2ODliMjRmZTcz%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%227c92bd05-c451-48f0-90fd-d8f838d8cee2%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22e2b29094-e52f-4304-874a-8cb8e792fc22%22%7d
https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/jlearymixon_homesforgood_org/EcptlDasMX5PrO7wrInReCkBpoaivJokVTDNL4RG0EnrGw?e=Ug6l9f


1. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

Maximum time 30 minutes: Speakers will be taken in the order in which they sign up and will be limited 

to 3-minutes per public comments. If the number wishing to testify exceeds 10 speakers, then 

additional speakers may be allowed if the chair determines that time permits or may be taken at a later 

time. 

 

PLEASE NOTE: The Homes for Good Board of Commissioners is a policy advisory body to Homes for 

Good and is not designated to resolve issues in public meetings. The Board will not discuss or make 

decisions immediately on any issue presented.  

 

2. COMMISSIONERS' RESPONSE TO PUBLIC COMMENTS AND/OR OTHER ISSUES 

AND REMONSTRANCE (2 min. limit per commissioner) 

 

3. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 

 

4. COMMISSIONERS’ BUSINESS 

 

5. EMERGENCY BUSINESS 

 

6. ADMINISTRATION 

 

A. Executive Director Report  

 

7. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of 08/27/2025 Board Meeting Minutes  

 

8. ORDER 25-24-09-01H  

In the Matter of Approving the FY2026 Budget  

(Leadership Team) (Estimated 20 minutes)  

 

9. ORDER 25-24-09-02H  

In the Matter of Approving the Fisal Year 2026 Public Housing Operating Budget 

(Wakan Alferes, Supportive Housing Director) (Estimated 5 minutes)  

 

 

 

10. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Homes for Good Board will hold an Executive Session pursuant to ORS 192.660(d), to conduct 

deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to carry on labor negotiations.     

Representatives of the news media and designated staff shall be allowed to attend the executive 

session. All other members of the audience are asked to leave the room. Representatives of the news 

media are specifically directed not to report on any of the deliberations during the executive session, 

except to state the general subject of the session as previously announced. No decision may be made 

in executive session.   



 

11. ORDER 25-24-09-03H  

In the Matter Approving the Collective Bargaining Agreement Ratification 

(Bailey McEuen, Human Resources Director) (Estimated 10 minutes)  

 

 

12. PRESENTATION 

Energy Services: Overview of Programs & Community Impact 

(Esteban Montero Chacon, Energy Services Director) (Estimated 20 minutes)  

 

 

13.  OTHER BUSINESS 

 

Adjourn. 

 

 

 

 





MINUTES 

Homes for Good Housing Agency       

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

_______________________________________________________________________

Wednesday, August 27th, 2025 at 1:30 p.m. 

Homes for Good conducted the August 27th, 2025, meeting in person at the Homes for Good 
administrative building and via a public video call with dial-in capacity. The public was able to join 
the call, give public comments, and listen to the call. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Board Members Present: 
Heather Buch 

Michelle Thurston 

Justin Sandoval 

Pat Farr 

Kirk Strohman 

Chloe Chapman 

Larissa Ennis 

Joel Iboa  

Destinee Thompson 

Board Members Absent: 
Kirk Strohman 

Quorum Met



1. PUBLIC COMMENT  
None 

  
2. COMMISSIONERS' RESPONSE TO PUBLIC COMMENTS AND/OR OTHER ISSUES 

AND REMONSTRANCE  
None 

 

3. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA  
None 

 

4. COMMISSIONERS’ BUSINESS  
None 

 

5. EMERGENCY BUSINESS  
None 

 

6. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Homes for Good Board will hold an Executive Session pursuant to ORS 192.660(d), to conduct 
deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to carry on labor negotiations. 

 
Representatives of the news media and designated staff shall be allowed to attend the executive 

session. All other members of the audience are asked to leave the room. Representatives of the news 
media are specifically directed not to report on any of the deliberations during the executive session, 

except to state the general subject of the session as previously announced. No decision may be made 

in executive session. 
 

7. ADMINISTRATION  

A. Executive Director Report 

Jacob Fox discussed the steady federal funding levels from HUD over the past several months. 
Amongst the appropriations leadership, there is a general agreement and understanding that 

HUD federal funding is a tool to prevent homelessness and housing for individuals on fixed 
incomes, specifically seniors and folks with disabilities. The only noticeable impact has been a 

delay in Department of Energy funds used to weatherize low-income households in Lane 
County.  

 

The Coleman has been approved for funding by Oregon Housing & Community Services 

(OHCS). Construction is anticipated to start mid-2026. The Coleman is a 52-unit housing 
community designed in partnership with Sponsors, Inc.  

 

Executive Director, Jacob Fox and Deputy Director, Ela Kubok have met with staff teams that 
spend most of their time working at our apartment communities across Lane County. This was 

in response to feedback received by staff during this year’s employee engagement survey; that 
leadership should engage more with staff that don’t normally work out of the administrative 

building. Jacob and Ela had an opportunity to spend time with the Property Management team, 
Permanent Supportive Housing team and Resident Services team.  



 

Atkins Dame is in the final stages of pushing Parcel II into Oregon Centralized Application 
(ORCA) system. Jacob has received prior authorization to move forward with financial 

transactions regarding this development. Given elements of the language of the agreement 
are non-specific, Homes for Good will have legal counsel prepare a board memo and order.  

  

Discussion Themes 

None 

8. CONSENT AGENDA  
A. Approval of 07/30/2025 Board Meeting Minutes  

 

Vote Tabulations 

Motion: Heather Buch 

Second: Destinee Thompson  

Discussion: None  

 

Ayes: Heather Buch, Michelle Thurston, Justin Sandoval, Larissa Ennis, Joel Iboa Pat Farr, 

Destinee Thompson 

Abstain: Chloe Chapman 

Excused: Kirk Strohman 

The 08/27/2025 Consent Agenda was approved [8/0/1] 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



________________________________________

________________________________________ 

 

9. PRESENTATION: Fiscal Year 2026 Budget Updates 
Deputy Director, Ela Kubok Presenting  
 

Overview 

Homes for Good has hosted two “Board Budget Office Hours” on August 19th and August 20th. Each 

session provided an opportunity to review draft budgets with Division Directors and ask clarifying 

questions.  

 

The Board Finance Committee meeting on September 10th, will serve as the final “Board Budget 

Office Hour” before the September board meeting, at which time the finalized budget document will 

be presented for board approval.  

 

Public Housing Portfolio Roll-Up 

Some properties are in a deficit, but all funds are fungible with anticipated overall positive cashflow 

budget. 

Affordable Housing Roll-Up 

Anticipated positive cashflow budget, including a one-time $500k contribution. Funds for these 

properties are not fungible.  

Housing Choice Voucher 

The budget still need to be finalized in conjunction with Long-Term Rent Assistance (LTRA) funds. 

LTRA is a program as a result of the governors’ state of emergency declaration for homelessness. 

Originally there were multiple service providers, but it’s anticipated this program will be facilitated by 

Homes for Good only moving forward. LTRA offers subsidies such as (rent assistance, utility 

assistance, etc.) for qualifying low-income households. 

Real Estate Development 

Vacancies in Bus Barn and ongoing stabilization of third-party managed properties has contributed to 

anticipated deficits. Some developer fees included in the FY25 budget were not received and will be 

considered for the FY26 budget to offset deficits.  

Energy Services 

Budget is in an anticipated positive cashflow – while acknowledging some funding uncertainties. 

 

Discussion Themes 

None 

 

No action needed. 

________________________________________

________________________________________



________________________________________

________________________________________ 

 

10. PRESENTATION: Rent Assistance Voucher Program Overview & Impact 
Rent Assistance Director, Beth Ochs Presenting  
 

Overview 

The Homes for Good Rent Assistance Department administers the voucher program. The types of 

vouchers include: 

- Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) 

- Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing (VASH) 

- Project-Based Vouchers (PBV) 

- Mainstream (MS) 

- Emergency Housing Voucher (EHV) 

- Foster Youth Initiative (FYI) 

- Homeownership (HO) 

Voucher utilization rates are high, with 80% serving low-income and extremely low-income 

households (0-30% of area median income) with most households earning under $15,000.  

Funding has grown steadily across programs with HCV reaching over $31 million, but EHV will end at 

the end of 2026 which will potentially reduce administrative fees by over $209,000 in 2027. VASH is 

anticipated to expand this year with the acquisition of an additional 10-15 vouchers. 

[see presentation titled: Voucher Overview] 

Discussion Themes 

▪ Determination methodology for “units available” 

▪ Voucher attrition 

▪ HCV vs. Mainstream 

▪ Voucher administration and funding from HUD 

▪ PBV clarifications 

▪ Future for folks using EHV vouchers  

 

No action needed. 

________________________________________

________________________________________ 

 

 
11. OTHER BUSINESS 

The Bridges on Broadway grand opening event was a success 

 
  

Meeting adjourned at 3:07 p.m. 
Minutes Taken By: Jasmine Leary Mixon 





 
HOMES FOR GO 

OD MEMORANDUM REFERENCE DOCUMENT 

 

TO:  Homes for Good Board of Commissioners  

FROM: Jacob Fox, Executive Director  

TITLE: In the Matter of Approving the Fiscal Year 2026 Budget 

DATE:  September 24th, 2025   

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

MOTION:   

It is moved that the Order be approved which adopts the Agency fiscal year 2026 budget. 

DISCUSSION: 

A. Issue 

It is necessary for the board to adopt the Homes for Good Housing Agency’s fiscal year 

2026 Budget. 

 

B. Background 

This Order approves the Homes for Good Housing Agency’s (Agency) budget for the fiscal 

year beginning October 1, 2025. 

 

C. Analysis 

The fiscal year 2026 Budget Document (Budget Document) presents the Homes for Good 

Housing Agency’s (Agency) Budget for the fiscal year October 1, 2025, through September 

30, 2026. The Budget Document provides summary information about distinct activities. 

This year the Budget Document is organized by groupings consisting of Rent Assistance, 

Real Estate Development and Asset Management, Energy Services, Grants and Supportive 

Services, Supportive Housing Division and the Central Office Cost Center. These are the 

same groupings that were used for the first time last year, to better represent the business 

activity of each budget. 

 

During the budget process this summer we included a series of open office hours meetings 

available to board members on specific budget areas. This approach allowed for more 

detailed discussion on budget deficits and strategies to overcome them as well as an overall 

budgeting philosophy discussion. 

 

The FY26 Budget was our second time using the Budgeting module in Yardi. The Yardi 

software implementation allows us to utilize the budget and forecasting functionality, 



 
involving a much more in-depth exercise with Division Directors and staff in the budget 

process and evaluation of presented expenses and income. Utilizing Yardi allows close 

monitoring of budget to actual reports in real time and the ability to adjust if needed 

throughout the budget year. 

 

The budget document for FY26 does not feature an agency-all summary, because funding is 

not fungible between the different budgets. Each budget directly represents the business 

activities for their respective department. 

 

Homes for Good carries reserve balances for many of the activities in the budget. Restricted 

reserves represent resources having externally imposed constraints on use by grantors, 

contributors, creditors, investors, other governments, or any applicable legislation. 

Unrestricted reserves represent resources that have not been restricted and may be 

strategically invested. Program reserves are limited to use for their respective programs.  

 

Employment cost, salary and fringe continue to be the highest expense in the budgets. FY26 

has 132 FTE, which includes 12 vacant positions to be filled.  

 

The proposed fiscal year 2026 budget supports the Agency’s ongoing commitment to 

provide quality affordable housing and our desire to make continued progress on our Access 

& Opportunity Plan (AOP) initiatives. Homes for Good plays a significant role in 

implementing public policy goals intended to provide solutions for people experiencing 

homelessness and other barriers to housing in our community that without our support will 

not be able to access an affordable home. 

 

 

D. Furtherance of the Access & Opportunity Plan 

One of the most important resources in achieving all four pillars of the AOP goals will be 

having the appropriate staffing levels to go beyond the operational and regulatory 

requirements associated with running our programs and properties while also implementing 

the AOP goals. Each division has impact on our communities in different ways and have AOP 

goals specific to their departments and jobs. By ensuring that each division is properly 

staffed, has a plan for appropriately allocating funds, all while keeping the pillars of the AOP 

at the forefront, the Agency as whole can continue to support our residents and in turn our 

community. Following the money and monitoring how we spend money through the lens of 

our Access & Opportunity Plan is another tactic to use to further our efforts. 

 

E. Alternatives & Other Options 

The Board can either approve the proposed budget Motion as recommended or make 

changes before adopting the budget. 

 

F. Timing & Implementation 

If approved, the proposed budget will be implemented starting October 1st, 2025. 



 
 

G. Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Board of Commissioners approve the proposed budget. 

 

H. Follow Up 

None 

 

I. Attachments 

• Budget Document 

• Budget Reference Table  

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CLICK THE LINK BELOW TO VIEW THE BUDGET DOCUMENT 

Fiscal Year 2026 Budget Document.pdf 

 

https://hacsaus-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/jlearymixon_homesforgood_org/EdmSj0F2gmxDhwKmuIySezsB6X_dG-yxt1kYQIfYYwcZGA?e=EkeaTi


 
 
 

IN THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOMES FOR GOOD HOUSING AGENCY, OF LANE COUNTY OREGON 

 

ORDER 25-24-09-01H In the Matter of Approving the Fiscal Year 

2026 Budget 

 

 

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Board to adopt a fiscal year 2026 budget for the Homes for 

Good Housing Agency; and  

WHEREAS, the Homes for Good Housing Agency Executive Director has recommended 

approval of the proposed Homes for Good budget for the 2026 fiscal year; and  

WHEREAS, the Board having fully considered the Executive Director's recommendation; 

and  

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED, that the 2026 fiscal year budget for Homes for Good 

Housing Agency is hereby approved and adopted by the Homes for Good Housing Agency 

of Lane County, Oregon 

 

DATED this                day of                                             , 2025 

 

 

__________________________________________________   

Chair, Homes for Good Board of Commissioners   

 

__________________________________________________   

Secretary, Homes for Good Board of Commissioners   





 

HOMES FOR GOOD MEMORANDUM REFERENCE DOCUMENT 
 

 
TO: Homes for Good Board of Commissioners 

FROM: Wakan Alferes, Supportive Housing Director 

TITLE: In the Matter of Approving the Fiscal Year 2025 Public Housing Operating Budget 

DATE: September 24th, 2025 

 

MOTION: 

It is moved that the Order/Resolution be adopted approving the Public Housing operating 

budget for the fiscal year ending September 30th, 2025 

DISCUSSION: 

A. Issue 

HUD requires the Board to review and approve the Public Housing Operating Budget 

 
B. Background 

This Order/Resolution approves the Agency’s fiscal year operating budget for Public 

Housing. There are six public housing asset management project (AMP) budgets as well as 

a separate budget for the central office cost center (COCC). HUD requires Board approval 

for each of these budgets. 

 
C. Analysis 

Attached is a site budget for each of the Agency’s Public Housing asset management 

projects (AMPs). Major revenues for the AMPS include tenant rents and HUD’s operating 

subsidy. Revenue from tenant rent is budgeted at approximately $2.6 million which is higher 

comparable to the prior year. The operating subsidy budgeted for fiscal year 2026 is also 

comparable to the prior year. While Public Housing operating subsidy proration for next year 

is still uncertain, we are expecting a slight reduction based on proposed budgets from the 

House and Senate. Total budgeted AMP expenses of approximately $5.4 million are 

comparable to the total budgeted AMP expenses for FY 2025. No noteable cashflow or 

deficits are expected for FY 2026. 

 
Also attached is a budget for the Agency’s Central Office Cost Center (COCC). Under HUD’s 

model, the COCC is analogous to the administrative office of a private property 

management company. The revenues of the COCC include management fees, bookkeeping 

fees, and asset management fees that are charged to the AMPs. The revenue also includes 

fees for service. Fees for service are based on the anticipated needs of property managers. 

The COCC revenues are expected to exceed $5.5 million for FY 2026. COCC expenses are 

expected to be approximately $5 million for FY 2026. 



 

D. Furtherance of the Access & Opportunity Plan 

The Public Housing budget specifically focuses on those we serve, particularly residents of 

Homes for Good properties. This furthers Pillar I (Listen to Our Communities) and Pillar III 

(Create Pathways to Self-Sufficiency) of the Strategic Equity Plan. By continuing to ensure 

fiscal responsibility of Agency-owned properties this ensure the safety and maintenance of 

the homes the residents live in. Additionally, proper budgeting and planning will guarantee 

allocated resources towards improving the holistic well-being of the onsite families, such as: 

after school program for children, homeownership programs, wellness activities and much 

more. 

 
E. Alternatives & Other Options 

HUD requires that the Board approve next fiscal year’s Public Housing Operating budget by 

September 30, 2025. 

 

F. Timing & Implementation 

HUD requires that the Board approve next fiscal year’s Public Housing Operating budget by 

September 30, 2025. 

 
G. Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Board of Commissioners approve the proposed motion as 

recommended. 

 
H. Follow Up 

None 

 
I. Attachments 

▪ FY26_Public Housing Budget for Board Approval 

▪ HUD-52574 FY26_PHA Board Resolution 



9/17/2025 10:32 AM

Riverview Terrace Cresview Villa Laurelwood McKenzie Village Pengra Court Maplewood Meadows Parkview Terrace Veneta Villa Veneta Scattered Sites Lindeborg Place Total AMPS Total COCC Total
3000-00-000  INCOME
3199-00-000  TOTAL TENANT INCOME 155,500.00 139,704.00 147,000.00 857,000.00 112,000.00 274,000.00 645,000.00 117,000.00 65,278.00 146,100.00 2,658,582.00 1,136,643.25 3,795,225.25
3499-00-000  TOTAL GRANT INCOME 30,252.00 17,142.00 12,184.00 86,722.00 11,092.00 19,159.00 75,630.00 13,000.00 10,084.00 20,162.00 295,427.00 1,285.70 296,712.70
3699-00-000  TOTAL OTHER INCOME 204,494.00 135,000.00 160,137.00 750,000.00 112,000.00 130,000.00 617,160.00 166,152.00 110,000.00 280,000.00 2,664,943.00 4,371,998.35 7,036,941.35
3999-00-000  TOTAL INCOME 390,246.00 291,846.00 319,321.00 1,693,722.00 235,092.00 423,159.00 1,337,790.00 296,152.00 185,362.00 446,262.00 5,618,952.00 5,509,927.30 11,128,879.30

4000-00-000  EXPENSES
4199-00-000  TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 198,834.16 119,725.71 103,123.60 534,893.61 88,063.59 224,653.87 443,830.31 92,308.73 56,855.29 160,631.00 2,022,919.87 3,824,375.16 5,847,295.03
4299-00-000  TOTAL TENANT SERVICES EXPENSES 21,023.12 24,252.04 14,561.20 79,289.16 9,633.60 43,190.84 65,210.64 19,122.56 12,094.88 6,300.00 294,678.04 0.00 294,678.04
4399-00-000  TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES 59,000.00 48,800.00 44,500.00 215,500.00 32,500.00 54,175.00 186,850.00 50,000.00 32,500.00 41,500.00 765,325.00 77,000.00 842,325.00
4499-00-000  TOTAL MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONAL EXPENSES 175,958.84 97,234.28 109,367.48 430,329.40 76,932.04 101,541.16 419,669.28 93,401.40 60,720.56 158,119.20 1,723,273.64 875,276.55 2,598,550.30
4599-00-000  TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 33,294.35 23,298.23 24,568.24 131,586.97 20,366.74 44,888.63 100,730.14 15,596.91 13,410.23 25,593.36 433,333.80 86,778.39 486,817.84
4899-00-000  TOTAL FINANCING EXPENSES 12,255.12 6,942.60 5,922.36 35,146.92 4,491.60 7,763.52 30,444.24 6,133.44 0.00 8,174.04 117,273.84 242,607.72 359,881.60
5999-00-000  TOTAL NON-OPERATING ITEMS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -84,684.00 -84,684.00
8000-00-000  TOTAL EXPENSES 510,365.59 320,252.86 303,503.43 1,449,746.06 234,487.57 480,213.02 1,246,734.61 276,563.04 179,380.96 401,317.60 5,402,564.74 4,988,059.62 10,390,624.36

9000-00-000  NET INCOME -120,119.59 -28,406.86 15,817.57 243,975.94 604.43 -57,054.02 91,055.39 19,588.96 5,981.04 44,944.40 216,387.26 521,867.87 738,254.94

9100-00-000   Debt Service 22,281.96 12,622.92 10,767.84 63,903.36 8,166.48 14,115.48 55,353.00 11,151.60 0.00 14,861.76 213,224.40 401,018.52 614,242.92
9100-01-000   Replacement Reserves 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 35,000.00 35,000.00

9888-88-000   CASH FLOW -142,401.55 -41,029.78 5,049.73 180,072.58 -7,562.05 -71,169.50 35,702.39 8,437.36 5,981.04 30,082.64 3,162.80 84,849.16 89,012.02

Homes for Good Housing Agency

Low Rent Public Housing
Oct 2025-Sep 2026

 Page 1 of 1



PHA Board Resolution 
Approving Operating Budget 

U.S. Department of Housing and  
Urban Development 

Office of Public and Indian Housing 

OMB Approval No. 2577-0029 (exp. 04/30/2027) 

Previous editions are obsolete      Form HUD-52574 

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 136.2 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, , gathering, and maintaining the data needed, completing the operating budget and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden 
estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Reports Management Officer, QDAM, Department of Housing and 
Urban Development, 451 7th Street, SW, Room 4176, Washington, DC 20410. When providing comments, please refer to OMB Approval No. 2577-0029. This agency may not collect this 
information, and you are not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid OMB control number. 

This information is required by Section 6(c)(4) of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937. The information is the operating budget for the low-income public housing program and provides a 
summary of the proposed and budgeted receipts and expenditures, approval of budgeted receipts and expenditures, and justification of certain specified amounts.  HUD reviews the 
information to determine if the operating budget adopted by the public housing agency (PHA) and the amounts are reasonable, and that the PHA complies with HUD prescribed 
procedures. PHA boards must approve the operating budget and HUD requires boards to certify their approval through this form. Responses are required to obtain benefits. This 
information does not lend itself to confidentiality. 

PHA Name:  PHA Code:  

PHA Fiscal Year Beginning Board Resolution Number: 

Acting on behalf of the Board of Commissioners of the above-named PHA as its Chairperson, I make the following 

certifications and agreement to the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) regarding the Board’s 

approval of (check one or more as applicable): 

DATE 

Operating Budget approved by Board resolution on: 

Operating Budget submitted to HUD, if applicable, on: 

Operating Budget revision approved by Board resolution on: 

Operating Budget revision submitted to HUD, if applicable, on: 

I certify on behalf of the above-named PHA that: 

1. All statutory and regulatory requirements have been met;

2. The PHA has sufficient operating reserves to meet the working capital needs of its developments;

3. Proposed budget expenditure are necessary in the efficient and economical operation of the housing for the purpose of

serving low-income residents;

4. The budget indicates a source of funds adequate to cover all proposed expenditures;

5. The PHA will comply with the wage rate requirement under 24 CFR 968.110(c) and (f); and

6. The PHA will comply with the requirements for access to records and audits under 24 CFR 968.110(i).

I/We, the undersigned, certify under penalty of perjury that the information provided above is true and correct. 

WARNING: Anyone who knowingly submits a false claim or makes a false statement is subject to criminal and/or civil 

penalties, including confinement for up to 5 years, fines, and civil and administrative penalties. (18 U.S.C. §§ 287, 1001, 

1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. §3729, 3802). 

Print Board Chairperson’s Name: Signature: Date: 

Housing Authority & Community Services of Lane County OR006

10.01.2025 25-24-09-02H

x

x

09.24.2025

09.26.2025





 
 

HOMES FOR GOOD MEMORANDUM 

TO:    Homes for Good Board of Commissioners 

FROM:   Bailey McEuen, Human Resources Director 
    Jacob Fox, Executive Director 
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Collective Bargaining Agreement Ratification 

AGENDA DATE:  September 24, 2025 

 

A. Background of Agency & Union Partnership 

 

This memo summarizes the recent collective bargaining process, outlines the financial implications of 

the proposed wage adjustments, and seeks the Board’s approval to ratify the tentative agreement. 

 

Homes for Good and American Federation of State, County & Municipal Employees (AFSCME) Local 

3267 are proud of the partnership we have created and fostered to provide Agency staff with a 

productive and positive workplace where all employees can thrive. Homes for Good believes that our 

employees are our most valuable assets. We also recognized that our past and our future are deeply 

connected to organized labor. To that end, continuing to grow and foster the relationship with union 

staff and leadership is imperative to achieving our organizational goals.  

 

Working with our union throughout the bargaining process has allowed Homes for Good to align our 

shared goals and values, and to put them into practice by creating a collective bargaining agreement 

(CBA) that provides our represented team members with competitive pay and benefits, and workplace 

practices that foster a culture that prioritizes diversity, equity, inclusion and belonging.  

 

The Homes for Good bargaining team requests that the Board of Commissioners ratification of the CBA 

between Homes for Good and AFSCME Local 3267, to be effective October 1, 2025, expiring on 

September 30, 2029.  

 

B. Bargaining a New Contract 

AFSCME notified Homes for Good on February 19, 2025 of their intent to open the CBA and negotiate a 

new contract. Both parties met on May 16, 2025 to establish ground rules and schedule subsequent 

bargaining sessions.  

Homes for Good chose the following individuals to represent the Agency during negotiations:  

• Bailey McEuen, Human Resources Director 

• Natalie Dybens, Rent Assistance Manager 

• Jeffrey Champ, Maintenance Services Manager 

• Camryn Leland, PSH Manager (alternate) 



 

AFSCME’s bargaining teams was comprised of the following individuals: 

• Monica Bielski-Boris, AFSCME Council 75 Representative  

• Rebecca Murphy-Lyons, Programs & Grants Coordinator, Union President 

• Will Hartley, Project Developer, Union Vice President 

• David Sebold, Maintenance Mechanic (alternate) 

Teams bargained for approximately 12 weeks, with the first session held on June 13, 2025 and the last 

session held on September 5, 2025 where the Teams came to a final tentative agreement. Union 

member vote will begin on September 17, 2025 and end on September 20, 2025.  

This bargaining cycle was notably brief and remarkably collaborative. We attribute this positive 

experience to the strong relationship we have built with union leadership over the years and are 

grateful for AFSCME’s continued collaboration and partnership in supporting Homes for Good team 

members. 

C. Summary of Non-Monetary Changes 

Some key non-financial changes to the CBA are highlighted below: 

Article 2 STATUS OF AGREEMENT 
Locks in 4-year agreement – contract expires September 30, 2029. 

 
 Article 7 TIME MANAGEMENT PROGRAM  

Adds MOU language memorializing change in pay periods affecting paid time off (PTO) accrual rates 
per pay period. Adjust dates of time management buy back request requirements to align with 
biweekly pay periods.  

 
 Appendix II BUMPING CLASSIFICATION GROUPS 
 Reorganizes job groups to better align with current Agency structure and staffing needs. 
  
 Article 11 WORK SCHEDULE 

Adds language agreeing to notify the Union and the affected employee when a change to remote work 
status is required. Aligns timing of notification with previously agreed upon schedule changes. 
 
ARTICLE 18 SENIORITY & RECALL 
Clarifies language around bumping rights in the event of a reduction in force to preserve seniority and 
ensure employees who bump into a different position are qualified for the role. Clarifies procedure for 
employee termination for exhaustion of leave.  

 
Article 3.9 PROBATIONARY PERIOD 
Adds language allowing the Agency to extend probationary periods by 3 months when deemed 
necessary. Increases the probationary period for Housing Specialists and Energy Auditors. Adds 
language allowing the Agency to extend probationary periods when an employee is on a continuous 
leave of absence for 10 or more working days in their probationary period.  

 
Article 3.12 PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS  
Eliminates language preventing the Agency from using peer feedback in performance evaluations. 

 
Many of these updates formally incorporate into the CBA language that had already been in place 
through memoranda of understanding (MOUs). Among the most significant revisions is the change to 
the probationary period, which allows the Agency to extend an employee’s probation when needed.  



 

This flexibility benefits both management and staff: it gives employees additional time to fully learn 
their roles and reduces the likelihood of probationary terminations, while ensuring the Agency can 
make well-informed decisions about long-term employment.  
 
The updates to Appendix II and Article 18 clarify job groupings and seniority procedures so that, in the 
event of a major funding cut requiring a reduction in force, decisions can be made with transparency 
and fairness.  
 
Finally, the change to Article 3.12 enables the Agency to include peer input in performance evaluations, 
helping to mitigate bias by drawing on feedback from multiple sources rather than relying solely on a 
manager’s perspective. 

 
D. Summary of Monetary Changes 

Key monetary changes proposed are outlined below:  

Article 3 WAGES & SALARIES 
Provides a 3% cost of living adjustment (COLA) upon ratification, or October 1, 2025, whichever is 
later, and market adjustments for certain classifications. In subsequent years, variable COLAs will be 
based on the CPI-U Western Region (June-to-June), with a minimum of 2.5% and maximum of 5.5%. 
 
The following classifications will receive an additional adjustment based on a compensation study:  
 

• Office Assistants  4% 
• Maintenance Mechanics 7% 
• IT Support Technician  2% 

• PSH Case Managers  2% 
 
We have also agreed to create a new job classification group for our Permanent Supportive Housing 
(PSH) team members, recognizing that the work of our Resident Services and Property Management 
staff at PSH sites is fundamentally different from the work of similar classifications at non-PSH 
properties.  
 
Article 6.5 HOLIDAYS DURING LEAVE OR VACATION 
Adds MOU language providing clarity around holiday pay when on leave through Paid Leave Oregon 
(PLO) limiting Home’s for Good’s holiday pay expense to what is not covered by the PLO benefit. 
 
Throughout the negotiation process, keeping annual COLAs tied to the CPI-U for the Western Region 
was a priority for Homes for Good’s bargaining team, as it’s the most accurate indicator of regional 
inflation.  
 
The financial changes outlined above will allow Homes for Good to remain an employer of choice in 
Lane County by ensuring wages remain competitive and keeping pace with regional cost of living 
changes.  

 
E. Financial Analysis 

The total estimated increase of union labor expenses for FY 2026 will be $316,224.06. This 

figure includes cash compensation, employer payroll taxes and Agency retirement 

contributions. This change represents a total increase of 3.2%.  

 



 

 
 

 
 

Subsequent increases will depend on the CPI-U Western Region published for the month of 

June for FY 2027, FY 2028 and FY 2029. Future year increases will depend on the CPI-U 

Western Region data, with a minimum of 2.5% and a maximum of 5.5%  

 

These increases have been incorporated into the adopted FY 2026 budget. By shifting the CPI-

U reference month from September to June through a memorandum of understanding outside 

of the bargaining cycle, the Agency was able to account for the projected cost-of-living 

adjustments (COLAs) and related expenses in advance, ensuring the financial impact of the 

new agreement is reflected in the approved budget. 

 

When faced with the question of how Homes for Good will finance the proposed wage 

increase, we first assessed which divisions have adequate cash flows to support the financial 

impact. Currently, our Supportive Housing Division, Real Estate Development Division, and 

Central Office Cost Center have cashflows to support the proposed increase.  

 

While the Rent Assistance Division is currently projecting a budget deficit, this will be managed 

primarily through a combination of surplus from Real Estate Development, income from 

interest-bearing bank accounts, and vacancy management measures if sufficient funding to 

fully cover the deficit is not secured. Should these strategies prove insufficient, limited 

reductions in FTE to close the gap may be necessary. Funding from the Long-Term Rent 

Assistance (LTRA) program is expected to offset most of the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) 

program deficit. The Agency intends to strategically deploy LTRA funds to cover shortfalls in 

the Rent Assistance Division, and because budgeting assumptions for this department were 

intentionally conservative, the LTRA funding could potentially cover more payroll expenses 

than initially projected.  

 

 

 

Category Before Increase After Increase $ Change % Change

Regular Earnings 6,345,297.74$                   6,614,191.85$                   268,894.11$                   4.2%

Fringe 3,039,038.25$                   3,070,932.05$                   31,893.80$                     1.0%

Payroll Tax 637,573.97$                      653,010.12$                      15,436.15$                     2.4%

10,021,909.96$                 10,338,134.02$                  316,224.06$                   3.2%



 

F. Furtherance of Access & Opportunity Plan 

 These negotiated changes also advance the goals of Homes for Good’s Access and Opportunity 

Plan. Allowing peer feedback in performance evaluations helps reduce the risk of bias by 

incorporating perspectives beyond a single supervisor. In terms of compensation, market 

adjustments give additional wage increases to some of our lowest-paid classifications, such as 

Office Assistants, and provide extra adjustments for positions that had fallen furthest behind 

market rates, mainly Maintenance Mechanics. Together, these steps support a more equitable, 

inclusive, and competitive workplace. 

 

G. Alternatives & Other Options 

The Board may vote to approve the proposed changes and ratify the collective bargaining 

agreement. Alternatively, the Board could decline to approve the agreement, in which case 

bargaining with AFSCME would continue until a new tentative agreement is reached. 

 

H. Timing & Implementation 

If approved, the proposed changes will be implemented on October 1, 2025. 

 

I. Recommendations 

It’s recommended that the Board of Commissioners approve the proposed budget.  

 

H. Attachments 

None 

 

 

 

 

 

































































































ORDER/In the Matter of adopting and ratifying the Collective Bargaining Agreement between Homes for Good and 
AFSCME Local 3267 

 
 
 

IN THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 
HOMES FOR GOOD HOUSING AGENCY, OF LANE COUNTY OREGON 

 
 

ORDER 25-24-09-03H In the Matter of adopting and ratifying the 
Collective Bargaining Agreement with 
AFSCME Local 3267 and approving changes 
to wages, benefits and other provisions. 

 
 WHEREAS, a Collective Bargaining Agreement between Homes for Good 
Housing Agency and the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees 
(AFSCME) Local 3267, has been negotiated for the period of October 1, 2025 through 
September 30, 2029; and  
 
 WHEREAS, certain salary modifications to the agreement were negotiated; and 
 
 WHEREAS, other modifications to the agreement were negotiated; and 
 
 
NOW IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED THAT: the negotiated Collective Bargaining 
Agreement between Homes for Good Housing Agency and AFSCME Local 3267 for the 
period of October 1, 2025 through September 30, 2029, is hereby adopted and ratified by 
the Board and the Board further authorizes the Executive Director to execute the 
agreement on behalf of Homes for Good Housing Agency.  
 

This Order/Resolution No. 25-24-09-03H shall take effect immediately upon adoption, 
effective October 1, 2025. 
 
 
 DATED this  24th   day of     September   , 2025 
 

                                                  
                                                                     

Chair, Homes for Good Board of Commissioners 
 

                                                                     

Secretary, Homes for Good Board of Commissioners 
 





Energy Services 
Overview of Programs & Community Impact



Weatherization Assistance Program
The nation’s largest single “whole-house” energy 
efficiency program

The Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP) reduces energy costs for low-income households by 
increasing the energy efficiency of their homes, while ensuring their health and safety.

• Serves homeowners 
and renters

• Must fall below 
200% of the federal 
poverty line

• Comprehensive, full 
house 
weatherization

• No cost to client

2023 DOE Weatherization Fact Sheet



Weatherization Assistance Program

• Install LED bulbs
• Replace inefficient 

refrigerators with energy-
efficient models

• Insulation
• Air sealing
• Repair/replace 

windows and doors
• Minor roof and wall 

leaks

• Repair or replace 
heating/cooling systems

• Repair/replace water heaters
• Insulate water pipes and 

ducts
• Install/repair ducts as needed

• Install smoke/carbon monoxide alarms
• Evaluate mold/moisture hazards
• Perform incidental safety repairs when 

needed



Climate Crisis
Emergency heating and cooling for Lane County 
residents 

• Funded by Lane 
County’s LIHEAP 
program

• Recipients must qualify 
for LIHEAP

• Started as a heat only 
program and is now 
addressing cooling

• Shorter waitlist
• Call back within 48-72 

hours
• Provide temporary space 

heaters and cooling 
devices

• No cost to client

Before After



Healthy Homes Program
Promotes safe and long-lasting homes through 
repair and rehabilitation

• Administered by the Oregon Health Authority
• Homes for Good is one of 34 grantees in the state of Oregon that 

received this grant
• 3-year grant totaling $750,000



Special Projects
Firwood Multifamily Weatherization  

• In PY 25, we continued our weatherization 
of one of our buildings, Firwood Apartments

• Completed 27 units
• All units received DHPs, ASHRAE compliant 

bath and kitchen fans, air sealing, and 
ceiling insulation

• Collaborated with EWEB



Special Projects
NWN Ground Source Heat Pump Pilot Project

• Funded by NWN’s OLIEE (Oregon Low 
Income Energy Efficiency Program)

• NWN decarbonization focus – piloting new 
solutions

• Installed 12 Ground Source Heat Pumps 
for previous Weatherization clients



Upcoming Initiatives
Looking into next program year and beyond

• Continuation of Firwood 
weatherization

• Healthy Homes 
• Develop decarbonization 

initiatives 
• Explore new funding initiatives
• Expand partnerships with local 

utilities and organizations like 
ETO

• Incorporate OR-MEP funding 
for new construction

• Continue exploring intersection 
between health and 
weatherization



Community Impact

Through weatherization improvements and 
upgrades, households save on average $372 
or more every year

Since the program began in 1976, WAP has 
helped improve the lives of more than 7.2 
million families through weatherization 
services.

2023 DOE Weatherization Fact Sheet



Health Benefit Impacts
 

Fact Sheet: Healthy Housing in Oregon (2025 Edition)



Past Weatherization Jobs
Pre-Weatherization

Weatherization project in collaboration with St. Vincent de Paul Home 
Habilitation Program 

Located in Florence, Oregon



Past Weatherization Jobs
Post-Weatherization

New DHP, insulation, 
windows, roof



Participant Feedback
Customer Satisfaction Surveys



Meet our Participants

Applicant Demographics

• Elderly (Age 60+): 60% 

• Single Person Homes: 40% 

• Persons with Disability (SSDI, self-reported): 44% 

• Households with Children: 30% 

• Elderly, Disabled, Living Alone: 13% 

The majority of applicants primarily apply because of one of 
the following issues: Structural Integrity, HVAC System Failures, 

High Utility Costs, Health and Safety Hazards



Thank You!


	Energy Services Board Presentation.pdf
	Cover
	Slide 1

	Interior Page
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14

	Close
	Slide 15





